### IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

ALLEN LEE DAVIS,

Appellant,

v.

CASE NO. 63,374

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.



JUL 25 1983

SID J. WHITE

OLERK SUPREME COURT

Chief Deputy Clerk

ON APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE FOURTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT, IN AND FOR DUVAL COUNTY, FLORIDA

### INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

STEVEN L. BOLOTIN ASSISTANT PUBLIC DEFENDER SECOND JUDICIAL CIRCUIT POST OFFICE BOX 671 TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32302 (904) 488-2458

ATTORNEY FOR APPELLANT

###

### ISSUE I

THE TRIAL COURT ABUSED ITS DISCRETION BY FAILING TO GRANT APPELLANT'S MOTION FOR CHANGE OF VENUE

### A. The Nature of the Pre-Trial Publicity

Allen Davis was placed under arrest for the Weiler murders in the early morning of May 13, 1982 (R-1-2, T-1078). The probable cause statement in the arrest report includes the following remarks:

Allen Lee Davis admitts (sic) being at the victims home at approx. time of their death, 8 P.M. 11 May 1982. Allen Lee Davis failed a polygraph examination conducted by the Jax. Sheriff's Office.

(R-2).

On August 11, 1982, the defense filed a motion for change of venue, which contained the following allegations:

- 1. The Defendant was indicted and charged with three counts of First Degree Murder.
- 2. The death of the Weilers and the arrest of Allen Lee Davis has been subjected to extensive media coverage via television, radio, and newspapers in the Duval County area.
- 3. The State, through its agent, the Jacksonville Sheriff's Office, improperly released to the news media, which was disseminated in the Duval County

While it is true that Davis admitted being in the Weiler home at around 8:00 P.M., and that he did not recall everything that happened there, he did not admit to committing the murders or being aware of them (see T-1061-62,1200,1214). Therefore, it appears that Detective Kessinger juxtaposed Davis' admission of being in the house at 8:00 with someone else's (presumably the medical examiner's) conclusion about the time of death. [Dr. Floro testified at trial that the time of death was between 6 P.M. and midnight (R-964)]. Accordingly, the statement in the arrest report subtly implies that Davis admitted to an awareness of the time of death, and thus to an awareness of the murders. This potentially misleading implication was compounded a hundred-fold in a television newscast which stated, inter alia, that "[Davis] was in the presence of the victims at the time of their death and he admits to this and he has also failed the polygraph test" (T-145).

area, that Allen Lee Davis was arrested after he failed a polygraph examination.

- 4. The State, through its agent, the Jacksonville Sheriff's Office, improperly released to the news media, which was disseminated in the Duval County area, Allen Lee Davis's prior criminal record as well as the fact that the Defendant is currently on felony parole.
- 5. The State, through its agent, the Jacksonville Sheriff's Office, improperly released to the news media, which was disseminated in the Duval County area, statements of Allen Lee Davis to representatives of the Jacksonville Sheriff's Office, placing him at the scene of the murders at the time the victims were alleged to have been killed.
- 6. The State, through its agent, the Jacksonville Sheriff's Office, improperly released to the news media, which was disseminated in the Duval County area, certain aspects of the police investigation, to wit: fiber analysis and the searching of local waters for a weapon.
- 7. The State, through its agent, the Jacksonville Sheriff's Office, improperly released to the news media, which was disseminated in the Duval County area, certain evidence relating to a gun belonging to the Defendant's father being reported missing, which was consistent with the weapon or discription of the weapon involved in the death of the Weilers.
- 8. The State, through its agent, the Jacksonville Sheriff's Office, released copies of the Arrest and and Booking Report to the news media at first appearance court wherein the information regarding the polygraph examination was contained.
- 9. The Defendant's arrest, as well as subsequent court appearances by the Defendant or his counsel, have been reported by the local news media to the public in the Duval County area.
- 10. The knowledge of the case and of the Defendant as reported in the news media is widespread in Duval County. The potential for prejudice in the community as a result of such information or the exposure to such inadmissible evidence or testimony is great.

(R-205-06).

Appended to the motion was an affadavit of Assistant Public Defender Anthony Zebouni, stating that he personally observed Sheriff's Office employees tendering copies of the arrest report, which contained references to Davis' having failed a polygraph and to his statements placing him in the Weiler home, to television and radio personnel at Davis' bond hearing (R-208). Also included were affadavits of fifteen Duval County attorneys, who stated their opinions that Allen Davis could not obtain a fair and impartial jury in the county as a result of extensive newspaper publicity and T.V. and radio coverage of the case, and specifically the exposure of members of the community to the inadmissible evidence of Davis' having failed a polygraph examination (R-209,210,211,212,213,214,215,217,218,220,223), and his prior record of violent crime (R-213,217,218,219,223), and to the dissemination of statements concerning Davis' presence at the crime scene at the time of the offense (R-222).

At the hearing on the motion, the defense introduced an audit report showing the daily circulation of the Jacksonville newspapers. These figures were: Times-Union-115,666; Journal-43,600; Saturday-132,279; Sunday 146,423 (T-128-29). Certain newspaper articles were introduced into evidence as Defendant's Exhibit 4 (T-130).

The Jacksonville Journal of May 13, 1982 contained an article headlined "Suspect charged in triple murder", which included a photograph of police and funeral home employees removing the bodies of Mrs. Weiler and her daughters from their home (R-50). The article stated, inter alia:

<sup>1.5</sup>The exhibits introduced at the change of venue hearing will be transmitted to this Court. Two of the newspaper articles contained in exhibit 4 can also be found at pages 50-51, 53-54 of the record.

Police said records indicate Davis, a shipyard welder, was arrested in 1965 at Bangor, Maine, for assault and in 1966 in Baltimore, Md., for involuntary manslaughter with a vehicle.

Duval County Circuit Court records show he was sentenced to a total of 15 years here in 1973 after being convicted of two robberies and an attempted robbery. It could not be determined today if Davis served any time in prison on those convictions.

(R-50, see T-130).

The suspect agreed to take a lie detector test and failed it, officers said. They declined to reveal the test questions.

Homicide Detective Charles Kesinger said Davis told him he had seen Mrs. Weiler early Tuesday evening, the time members of the Duval County Medical Examiner's Office believe the killings occurred.

(R-51, see T-130-31).

The Journal of May 13, 1982 also contained an article headlined "Explaining girl's slaying a tough job for teacher." The article dealt with the trauma faced by Kristy Weiler's fifth grade teacher, in breaking the news of Kristy's murder to her classmates. It read, in part:

Kristina, who was called "Kristy", was a bouncy, "cheerleader type" who enjoyed doing handicrafts with her mother, Ms.
Robichaud said. She had been selected by her classmates as the March "Supercitizen," said school Principal Marilyn Duncan.

Yesterday would have been Kristy's 10th birthday. She had planned a birthday party at her home after school, and her class was taking a field trip to the zoo.

"They were having a disco party for her birthday. The invitations were so cute, she wrote them herself and said, 'Be sure to wear your disco clothes.' Eddie (a classmate) was so upset because he forgot his dancing shoes," Ms. Robichaud said.

(Defendant's Exhibit 4, p. 4).

\* \* \* \* \* \*

"We did not tell that Kristy was the one that died," Mrs. Duncan said, adding that the children were told the birthday party had been canceled because of a death in the family "so these children wouldn't go over and run right into the tragedy and all that would be connected with it."

Ms. Robichaud said Kristy's classmates did not seem satisfied with the explanation.

"They wanted to know who had died and I said, 'I don't know.' They wanted to know if the party would be held.

"They said, "Why is your nose so red? Why have you been crying? They know something is wrong, and I hope the parents are understanding about it. I feel sorry for those parents," Ms. Robichaud said.

But she knows she will have to do some explaining to her class today.

"I'm going to be very honest with them. They're going to be very scared, horribly scared. They're going to want comforting and they're going to want to know why it happened.

"I'm going to try to make it a normal day... with a lot of silent meditation."

(Defendant's Exhibit 4, p. 5).

The Times-Union of May 13, 1982 reported the reaction of Dr.

Bonafacio Floro, the assistant medical examiner:

When Floro left the house yesterday afternoon, he wiped tears from his eyes and brushed aside reporters' questions until he had made a preliminary examination.

He was visibly shaken.

'It was because there were kids involved and the way they were killed," Floro, himself the father of three children, a girl, 12, and two boys, 4 and 7, said later.

"You get emotional for anybody who had kids that died. They're so innocent; they did not know what was going on," he said.

(Defendant's Exhibit 4, p. 6).

The Times-Union of May 14, 1982 contained an article headlined "Welder held in slayings of mother, 2 daughters," featuring a large photograph of Allen Davis in handcuffs (R-53, see T-131). The story begins "A 37-year old welder who was paroled from prison in 1979 ..." (R-53). Davis is described as a 6-foot 340-pound individual nicknamed "Tiny" (R-53). The article continues:

Circuit Court records showed that Davis pleaded guilty in 1973 to armed robbery, attempted armed robbery and carrying a concealed firearm, and that Circuit Judge R. Hudson Oliff sentenced him to 15 years in prison.

Davis was paroled Sept. 25, 1979, after serving most of the six years at Doctors Inlet Road Prison in Clay County, said David Skipper, a spokesman for the state Department of Corrections in Tallahassee.

He was paroled because he had a clean disciplinary record, good progress reports and showed a favorable prison adjustment, Skipper said.

Court officials said Davis also was convicted in 1966 in Baltimore of involuntary vehicular manslaughter for which he was sentenced to three years.

And in 1961, Davis was convicted in Bangor, Maine, of assault and battery and was sentenced to six months to three years.

(R-53-54, see T-131-32).

. . . . . . .

Davis came under suspicion about eight hours after the bodies were found at 11 a.m. Wednesday, police said.

He was questioned by homicide detectives Wednesday night and voluntarily submitted to a lie-detector test, said homicide Lt. Jim Suber. He was arrested and booked about 2 a.m. yesterday. Davis' pickup truck, which was found near the Weilers' house, was examined for physical evidence.

"We got this thing under heavy investigation,"
Suber said yesterday. "We're trying right now
to tie some loose ends. We haven't found the
gun, and we can't comment on the evidence we have."

(R-54, see T-132).

On May 18, 1982, the Jacksonville Journal published an article headlined "Alligator impedes probe." This article concerned police efforts to recover the murder weapon, a pistol. Divers were searching several bodies of water, and there were apparently alligators in the locations being searched. Homicide detectives said they didn't know anything about alligators:

"I'm not verifying the information," Lt. Jim Suber said. "We're searching four or five bodies of water. This is just one more place."

Suber said any comments could hinder the investigation and that if anything were printed, a guard would be placed in the area being searched to prevent anyone from tampering with evidence that might be found there.

"Whoever knows where that gun is, knows where the water is" he said.

"You can never know for sure what people will do."

Suber said his fears were not that another suspect might be at large, but that relatives or friends of Allen Lee Davis, the 37-year old shipyard welder charged with the triple slayings could try to prevent investigators from discovering evidence.

(Defense Exhibit 4, p. 12, see T-133).

The defense called as a witness Steven Crosby, assistant news director at WJXT Television, Channel 4, who presented "doves" (video taped segments which appeared on the air) from newscasts concerning

the Weiler murders (T-138-42). One of these newscasts announced:

Thirty-seven-year-old Allen Lee Davis booked into the Duval County Jail early this morning; he's charged with triple murders of Nancy Weiler and her two children, ten-year-old Christina and five-year-old Kathy.

Early in the investigation, attention focused on this man, Allen Lee Davis, the son of the Weiler's next-door neighbor. After questioning Davis, police found substantial evidence in both the suspect's truck and, upon investigation of the house, linking him to the crime.

He was in the presence of the victims at the time of their death and he admits to this and he has also failed the polygraph test.

According to the police, Davis agreed to be interviewed at the Jacksonville Sheriff's Office. This is not his first brush with the law. Police say he was out on parole and has a lengthy criminal record. He is scheduled to be arraigned later this morning.

Jeff Silverstein, Channel 4, Eyewitness news.

(T-145).

Other channel 4 broadcasts carried the following information and commentary:

The neighborhood in this community is a very close-knit group. The only word is horrible. That is the only word. Things like this don't happen in a nice neighborhood and this is a nice neighborhood and they were nice people.

Twelve-year-old blank blank was invited to the birthday party planned for Cristina. She would have been ten years old. I got off of the bus and I didn't want to believe it at first. It's kind of senseless but I found out it was a crime.

(T-145).

The crime was called untimely. He is the son of the of the Weilers' next-door neighbor. Police say they found cord similar to that used to bind the wrists of the Weiler child in the Chevrolet pickup. They say his handgun is missing and has not yet been found.

Davis today has been charged with murder at 3:00 o'clock this morning, after he flunked a lie detector test. Davis had already been convicted of assault and disorderly conduct. He was out on parole for armed robbery. Fellow shipyard workers and friends give a completely different picture of Davis. They say he is a good natured man who loves children, a good co-worker. They say they can't believe he is a man who could be guilty of committing three murders.

Bill Palmer worked with Davis two years says he's okay, he loved to sit down and talk about hunting, fishing and back in Maine, that's where he's from. I can't believe that this happened. I can't believe it's true. I am sick about this whole thing. Since leaving the North Florida Shipyard in the fall, friends say Davis worked in other shipyards. They say he was laid off a few weeks ago. Davis shared his Arlington apartment with Mary Collins. It's unbelievable. I can't believe it. I really can't. Especially when it comes to children, I can't believe he would do something like that. I really don't believe he did it.

John Weiler is staying with friends after flying back from Pittsburgh yesterday. He said he is trying to make funeral arrangements for his family so brutally taken away from him.

Wynn Farley, Channel 4 Eyewitness News.

(T-146-47).

There might have been some doubt in people's minds, there was no doubt in our mind now that we have the right suspect. Lt. Suber would not comment on the circumstances but here's what we know of evidence for the comment of the circumstances but here's what we know of evidence for the circumstances but here's what we have the circumstances but here's who circumst

circumstances but here's what we know of evidence from the individuals close to the investigation: During several hours of questioning in the interrogation room, the police said Davis told them he was in the Weiler home the night of the murders but also said he had a lapse of memory. The detective that made up the arrest report wrote Allen Davis stated he could not remember everything that happened while he was at the victims' home.

The Duval County Medical Examiner put the time of death somewhere between 7:30 and 9:00 o'clock. John Weiler told police he talked with his wife on the phone at a quarter of 7:00 while she was preparing dinner.

A neighbor said she called the Weiler home at 8:15

and there was no answer. <u>Davis, himself, told the</u> <u>police he was in the house around 8:00 o'clock</u>. Police first questioned Davis as a possible suspect witness when his father, the Weiler's next-door neighbor, reported his gun missing.

The police believe the gun to be the same kind that the suspect used. They think it was a .357 caliber revolver like this one as fragments of the wood from the murder weapon were found by the victims which were pistol whipped.

Sources close to the investigation say the pistol was a Black Hawk .357 Magnum. The insignia was all that was found at the scene that would make it the same type gun Davis' father reported missing. The whereabouts of the actual murder weapon remains a mystery.

Among evidence taken from the truck was nylon cord believed to be identical to one of the cords used to tie up one of the children. Detectives secured the scene at the time and Davis' apartment, looking for physical evidence. Their findings were brought here to the Jacksonville Crime Lab where they will look for fibers, hair and do ballistic tests.

I think we have a very significant case against him at this point and I hope to have even a better case at trial time based on physical evidence and witnesses. Davis' attorney said he will ask the Court to move the case out of Jacksonville. We predict it will be a very sensitive case.

Denny Silverstein, Channel 4 Eyewitness news.

(T-147-49).

The video tape next depicted Allen Davis, handcuffed, wearing a baseball cap, and flanked by two officers, apparently being transported to the Duval County Jail during the night time (T-147).

The Channel 4 stories concerning the Weiler murders were aired at noon, 6:00 p.m., and 11:00 p.m., and some may have appeared on more than one newscast (T-142,150). According to an Arbitron survey covering the period from April 28 - May 25, 1982, Channel 4 News had a potential

weekday viewing audience<sup>2</sup> of 55,000 households or 72,000 persons for the noon broadcast, 109,000 households or 174,000 persons for the 6:00 p.m. broadcast, and 56,000 households or 92,000 persons for the 11:00 p.m. broadcast (T-150-51). Crosby indicated that this survey would include Duval County, and the surrounding counties of Baker, Bradford, Clay, Columbia, Nassau, and Putnam.<sup>3</sup>

Gerry Howard, news director of WJKS-TV, Channel 17, presented four taped news broadcasts concerning the Weiler murders. He estimated that, altogether, these stories would have been aired a dozen or more times (T-157,163). The third newscast, which was aired on May 13, 1982 at 6:00 p.m., again at 11:00 p.m., and on Newswatch 17 update the following morning (T-161, see T-157), related the following information:

Davis was charged with the murders early this morning after four hours of interrogation.

Police said he voluntarily submitted to a lie detector test and failed. Other evidence includes rope found in the back of pickup which may have been used to tie the hands of Kathy Weiler who was found shot to death. Police say Davis who was denied bond admitted being in the house around 8:00 p.m. Wednesday night.

Davis had been convicted twice and released from Raiford in 1969.

(T-162).

• •

Crosby defined his 'potential viewing audience" as the number of house-holds which, there would be good reason to believe, would have television sets tuned to Channel 4 WJXT at a particular time (T-151).

The population of Duval County, according to the 1980 census, was 570,981. The combined population of the six other counties was 221,206. According to voter registration statistics submitted by the defense, there were 251,304 registered voters (and therefore 251,304 potential jurors) in Duval County as of August 4, 1982 (T-126).

This date is incorrect. Davis was paroled from the Florida prison system in 1979. (See R-325, T-1785). The child whose hands were bound was Kristy Weiler.

Richard Padden<sup>5</sup> said he had spoken to Davis around 6:00 p.m. Tuesday night just about two hours before the murders were committed. He shook my hand and told me any time I needed anything, give him a holler. Did he indicate to you why he was in such a good mood? No. Looked like to me he had been out working. Police are searching the waters in back of the Weiler home in hopes of finding the murder weapon.

(T-162-63).

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