IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

SEP 16 1983

ALLEN LEE DAVIS, Appellant,)	Chief Deputy Diers
vs.)	CASE NO.: 63,374
STATE OF FLORIDA,)	
Appellee.)	

ON APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE FOURTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT IN AND FOR DUVAL COUNTY, FLORIDA

ANSWER BRIEF OF APPELLEE

JIM SMITH ATTORNEY GENERAL

KATHRYN L. SANDS Assistant Attorney General Suite 513 Duval County Courthouse Jacksonville, Florida 32202 (904) 633-3117

Counsel for Appellee

TOPICAL

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

Leon v. State, 396 So.2d 203, 205 (Fla. 3d DCA 1981).

It should be noted that the cases cited in the defense motion for individual and sequestered voir dire are not factually similar to this case. For example, in United States ex rel. Doggett v. Yeager, 472 F.2d 229 (3d Cir. 1973), the jury was already sworn at the time they were questioned about reading newspaper accounts of the crime. Russ v. State, 95 So.2d 594 (Fla. 1957), concerned a petition for writ of coram nobis following a first degree murder trial in which one juror allegedly stated openly to the jury that he had personal knowledge of the defendant's threatening and beating the victim. In Moncur v. State, 262 So.2d 688 (Fla. 2d DCA 1972), the trial judge received a co-defendant's guilty plea in the

presence of the venire from which Moncur's jury was to be selected. The jurors in Marrero v. State, 343 So.2d 883 (Fla. 2d DCA 1977), were drawn from the same jury venire which sat through the voir dire on the appellant's trial on other charges the previous day. Similarly, in Kelly v. State, 371 So.2d 162 (Fla. 1st DCA 1979), "several members of the jury venire from which the jury was chosen in this case had been present earlier in the week when a jury was chosen for an earlier trial of appellant on different charges."

Appellant did not at trial allege and has not on appeal established any reasonable doubt as to the impartiality of those jurors who were previously acquainted with the triple murder story. Appellant's speculation on appeal is further diluted by his previous expression of satisfaction with the jury selection process and his failure to request sequestered voir dire of those three jurors who now cause concern to him. See Kelly, 371 So.2d at 163. Under the circumstances Appellee submits Appellant has waived this issue or alternatively that Appellant has not demonstrated abuse of the trial court's discretion in the voir dire examination.

ISSUE III

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN DENYING APPELLANT'S MOTION TO STRIKE PROSPECTIVE JUROR LANE FOR CAUSE.

Bearing in mind once again that Appellant expressed approval of the jury selection process and accepted the jury without exhausting his peremptory challenges, we turn to Appellant's third appellate argument involving the trial court's denial of his motion to strike Mrs. Lane for cause. Appellee maintains that there was no error on this point and that even if there were error, it was waived or harmless under the circumstances.

Whether or not a prospective juror is dismissed for cause is a mixed question of law and fact within the discretion of the trial judge, and his ruling will not be set aside unless error is manifest. Singer v. State, 109 So.2d 7 (Fla. 1959); Hawthorne v. State, 399 So.2d 1088 (Fla. 1st DCA 1981). The defendant has a heavy burden of showing abuse of discretion in the denial of the challenge of a juror for cause. Williams v. State, 386 So.2d 538 (Fla. 1980); Skipper v. State, 400 So.2d 797 (Fla. 1st DCA 1981).

The test for determining the competence of a juror in a criminal case is not whether he or she will be able to control any bias or prejudice, but whether the juror may lay aside those considerations and render a verdict solely upon the evidence and instructions. <u>Leon v. State</u>, 396 So.2d 203 (Fla. 3d DCA 1981).

To hold that the mere existence of any preconceived notion as to the guilt or innocence of an accused, without more, is sufficient to rebut the presumption of a prospective juror's impartiality would be to establish an impossible standard. It is sufficient if the juror can lay aside his impression or opinion and render a verdict based on the evidence presented in court. (Emphasis supplied; citations omitted).

Irvin, 366 U.S. at 723.

Whether the juror challenged for having opinion as to issues in a criminal case has such a fixed opinion as will bias his or her verdict is a question of mixed law and fact to be determined on the evidence. <u>Hall v. State</u>, 136 Fla. 644, 187 So. 392 (1939).

In this case, the trial judge, who observed the manner and demeanor of Mrs. Lane, and heard her statements, could properly have determined that no disqualification of this prospective juror was shown. Skipper. Here the trial court listened carefully to the words spoken by Mrs. Lane and how she spoke them, and concluded that despite early discussions of her emotions, Mrs. Lane expressed that she could "listen to the evidence and consider it" and could "give [Appellant] a fair trial."

Defense counsel did not object when the trial court denied his motion to strike Mrs. Lane for cause and he did not "attempt to clarify the juror's attitude as it related to his or her ability to decide the issues impartially."

Paramore, 229 So.2d at 858. Defense counsel could have requested further voir dire examination of Mrs. Lane, but instead defense counsel quickly exercised one of its first peremptory challenges on Mrs. Lane. At the time he accepted the final jury, Appellant had not exhausted all of his peremptory challenges. Appellant now maintains that pursuant to Missouri case law this Court should not consider whether or not he had exhausted his peremptory See State v. Morrison, 557 S.W.2d 445 (Mo. Yet this Court in Singer definitely considered that factor when it stated, "In view of the fact that the defendant used all of his peremptory challenges, denial of the challenge for cause directed to Mr. Shaw was reversible error." 109 So.2d at 25. See also Paramore, 229 So.2d 855, 858 (Fla. 1969) [in sustaining the triel judge's excusal of jurors for cause, the Court considered the fact that "the State had more than enough remaining peremptory challenges available to have removed those prospective jurors had the trial judge declined to do so"].

Based on the foregoing reasoning, Appellee submits that Appellant has not established abuse of the trial court's discretion in denying Appellant's motion to strike Mrs. Lane for cause. Inasmuch as Appellant voluntariy and expressly stated his satisfaction with the jury and the jury selection process, and considering the fact that Appellant did not exhaust his peremptory challenges,

Appellee submits that if this Court determines that Mrs. Lane should have been excused for cause, this Court should characterize any error in the trial court's failur to do so as either waived by Appellant or harmless. See § 924.33, Fla. Stat. (1981).

ISSUE IV

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ABUSE ITS DISCRETION IN DENYING APPELLANT'S MOTION FOR MISTRIAL WHEN APPELLANT'S FATHER ON RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION REFERRED TO APPELLANT'S POLYGRAPH EXAMINATION.

Once again Appellant speculates or asserts a "strong likelihood" (AB 68) and a "mild implication" (AB 65) in this case. This time Appellant alleges that he was deprived of the presumption of innocence by his father's brief reference to Appellant's own statement to Detective Kessinger, "Let's go take a lie detector test and get it over with." (T 1271). Appellee submits that the general reference to such a possible event is not inadmissible evidence of a polygraph examination and that pursuant to defense counsel's request, the jury was admonished to disregard the apparently unintentional quip by Appellant's father.

Appellant's brief continually refers to results of polygraph tests and the premise that such results are regarded as "presumptively accurate." (E.g., AB 61). Appellant even notes that in Walsh v. State, 418 So.2d 1000 (Fla. 1982), the State was entitled to a mistrial where the jury heard that the defendant had passed a polygraph examination. (AB 62, n. 19). Walsh apparently knew that the polygraph results were inadmissible but improperly commented about his favorable results while he 418 So.2d at 1002. the witness stand. was on

In <u>Kaminski v. State</u>, 63 So.2d 339 (Fla. 1952), this Court disapproved the admissibility of lie detectors tests and stated:

We find, without a single exception, that every court of last resort that has been called upon to decide the question has ruled that results obtained from the so-called lie detector test are not admissible as evidence.

To this the Second District Court added:

The mere fact that a jury may be aware of defendant's having taken a lie detector test or may be apprised of facts from which they might infer such a fact is not error when the results of the test are not thus indirectly introduced. Moody v. State, 170 Tex.Cr.R. 637, 343 S.W.2d 698 (1961); People v. Sammons, 17 Ill.2d 316, 161 N.E.2d 322 (1959); People v. Flowers, 14 Ill.2d 406, 152 N.E.2d 838 (1958).

The Flowers case is similar to the case sub judice in that statements obtained after a lie detector test were admitted into evidence and the examiners testified to the fact that the statement was given by the defendant. However, unlike the instant case where inference is urged as the basis for the jury's conclusion that the witness was a polygraph operator, the Flowers case involved a direct statement to that effect by the witness. The Illinois Court wrote:

"It is nowhere suggested in the evidence before the jury in this case that the defendant submitted to a liedetector test, or that this statement was obtained in preparation for such a test. One of the examiners did testify that he is employed as chief polygraph examiner for the State Bureau of Identification. [But] * * *

The evidence here does not suggest a lie-detector test to the jury to the prejudice of the defendant. The one witness volunteered that he was a polygraph examiner, but did not negate the fact that he was associated with the State Bureau of Identification and might do many other types of investigation. We have determined here that the evidence iustified verdict and judgment. Such a case will not be reversed for errors in the admission of evidence unless they harmful. People v. Raymond, 296 Ill. 599, 130 N.E. 329. The error here, if any, is minor certainly not and reversible."

On the basis of an analysis of the cases hereinbefore discussed conclude that while neither results of a lie detector examination testimony which indirectly or inferentially apprises a jury of the results of a lie detector examination is admissible into evidence, the mere fact that the jury is apprised that a lie detector test was taken is not necessarily prejudicial if inference as to the result is raised or if any inferences that might be raised as to the result are not prejudicial.

<u>Johnson v. State</u>, 166 So.2d 798, 804-805 (Fla. 2d DCA 1964). <u>Accord</u>, <u>Dean v. State</u>, 325 So.2d 14 (Fla. 1st DCA 1975).

In this case there was no evidence that a polygraph examination was administered to Appellant and thus there was no evidence of any results. Still Appellant contends that the prejudicial inference as to the result is possible even from a reference in the future tense. (AB 63).

In support of this position, Appellant cites some cases in which the question or evidence was clearly intended to invoke such a prejudicial inference. See, e.g., Crawford v. State, 321 So.2d 559 (Fla. 4th DCA 1975); State v. Descoteaux, 614 P.2d 179 (Wash. 1980).

Yet in <u>Sullivan v. State</u>, 303 So.2d 632 (Fla. 1974), this Court affirmed a conviction even where the prosecutor deliberately elicited a reference to a polygraph examination of the witness McLaughlin, a state witness and co-perpetrator of the crime for which Sullivan was charged. In comparing <u>Sullivan</u> to the situation in <u>Kaminski v. State</u>, 63 So.2d 339 (Fla. 1952), the court stated:

Kaminski, the witness informed the jury that he had taken a test, polygraph defense carefully attempted to cure the error at the trial court level, and the State's case depended entirely upon the testimony of the witness, whose credibility had been seriously shaken both by cross-examination and by the testimony of other State witnesses. None of these factors is present in the instant cause, McLaughlin's testimony never having been seriously shaken, a large body of other evidence of appellant's guilty having been introduced, and, most importantly, McLaughlin never clearly stating that he had already taken the polygraph Indeed, the one ambiguous answer [That I would have to have taken a polygraph test and passed it] noted above is the sole reference to the polygraph.

<u>Sullivan</u>, 303 So.2d at 634, 635.

The <u>Sullivan</u> court pointed out the various interpretations possible by the jury and further stated:

We cannot know how the jury construed his answer, or what weight was given to it; therefore to assert that it was construed as meaning he had already passed it would be pure speculation on our part. Reversible error cannot be predicated on conjecture. Singer v. State, 109 So.2d 7 (Fla. 1959).

* * *

We also note that the witness never referred to the actual <u>results</u> of the polygraph test in any manner, and that the only mention of a polygraph test was the one answer discussed above. It all becomes too tenuous to support harmful error that would likely have produced a different results if not present.

303 So.2d at 635, 636.

Appellee submits that the instant case is sufficiently similar to <u>Sullivan</u> to require the determination that Donald Davis' quip was not reversible error.

In order to characterize the witness's reference to a polygraph examination as prejudicial and hence reversible error, it is necessary to indulge in both conjecture and the pyramiding of inferences. See Sullivan v. State, Fla. 1974, 303 So.2d 632; Johnson v. State, Fla. App. 1964, 166 So.2d 798.

Crawford v. State, 321 So.2d 559, 562 (Fla. 4th DCA 1975) (Mager, J., dissenting). Considering the substantial amount of other evidence of Appellant's guilt and the fact that the jury never was presented evidence that Appellant actually had taken a polygraph examination, Appellee submits that the admonishment to the jury requested by the

defense was sufficient to render Mr. Davis' statement harmless. Therefore, Appellant was not sufficiently prejudiced so as to be deprived of his presumption of innocence.

ISSUE V

APPELLANT WAS NOT DEPRIVED OF HIS RIGHT TO A FAIR BIFURCATED TRIAL BY THE PROSECUTORIAL COMMENTS DURING THE PENALTY HEARING IN WHICH DEFENSE COUNSEL OBJECTED ONLY ONCE.

Appellant argues that the prosecutor's closing argument in the penalty phase was of constitutional magnitude requiring a new sentencing hearing despite the fact that defense counsel objected to only one comment. Appellee submits that, subject to the one noted exception, Appellant failed to preserve for appellate review the issue of other closing comments by the prosecutor and that Appellant has not demonstrated fundamental error in this matter.

The prosecutor's closing comments in the sentencing phase are located in pages 1805 through 1831 of the transcript and involved nearly forty-five minutes of argument. (T 1833). In his final arguments to the jury, the prosecutor commented on the evidence presented in the penalty hearing and reminded the jurors that their oaths included a statement that they agreed to decide the issue in this case on the law and the evidence. (T 1810, 1811, 1813, 1830).

Thereafter defense counsel presented his closing remarks and conceded that the murders of Nancy Weiler and her two young daughters was "the work of a man possessed . . . , in short, the work of a mad man." (T 1834). The

defense preceded to use this characterization to its benefit by noting that mad men and possessed individuals are not killed but rather provide a purpose for such facilities as the state hospitals at Chattahoochee and Marianna and the St. Johns River Hospital. (T 1835). Defense counsel characterized Appellant's perpetration of the murders as "actions of a human being beyond any rational explanation." (T 1835).

After the jury charge, defense counsel objected to only one portion of the prosecutor's closing argument, an alleged Golden Rule comment. (T 1847). The trial court overruled this objection, "finding the comment by counsel in the manner and context in which it was made could not have been interpreted as violation of the Golden Rule." (T 1848).

This Court has repeatedly held that an appellant is precluded from asserting the argument regarding allegedly improper prosecutorial comments when the appellant has failed to object to such comments at trial. Gibson v. State, 351 So.2d 948 (Fla. 1977); Songer v. State, 322 So.2d 481 (Fla. 1975); State v. Jones, 204 So.2d 515 (Fla. 1967); Tillman v. State, 44 So.2d 644 (Fla. 1950). Appellant did not contest prosecutorial arguments, other than the alleged Golden Rule statement, and therefore he should not be allowed to raise this issue for the first time on appeal.

Section 921.141(1), Florida Statutes (1981), provides the following with regard to bifurcated capital trials:

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